




 

1 
 

Minutes 
McHenry Public Library District 

Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 
Public Hearing on 

The Annual Budget and Levy 
Ordinance 

 
 

Date:       October 16, 2018 
Time:       7:00 P.M. 
Location:  Library Board Meeting Room (Public Hearing) 
 
I.   Call to Order: 
 President Schubert called the public hearing meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.   
 
II.   Roll Call:  
 Roll was called and a quorum was established.  
 

Members Present:  Margaret Carey, Jackie Fogleman, Delphine Grala, Monica Leccese, 
Charles Reilly, Brad Schubert, Jill Stone 

     
Members Absent:   

 
Also Present:  James Scholtz, Executive Director, McHenry Public Library 

Bill Edminster, Assistant Director, McHenry Public Library 
Lesley Jakacki, Youth Services Manager, McHenry Public Library 
Patti Torgersen, Business Manager, McHenry Public Library 

  
III.    Public Forum  

No members of the public were in attendance. 
 
The Board reviewed the FY2018-2019 Annual Budget and Levy Ordinance.   
 

IV.   Adjournment  
 

 

 
  



 

2 
 

 
MINUTES 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
Date:       October 16, 2018 
Time:       7:00 P.M. 
Location:  Library Board Meeting Room (Following the Public Hearing) 
 
I. Call to Order: 

President Schubert called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call: 
Roll was called and a quorum was established.    
 
Members Present:  Margaret Carey, Jackie Fogleman, Delphine Grala, Monica Leccese, 
Charles Reilly, Bradley Schubert, Jill Stone  

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Also Present:  James Scholtz, Executive Director, McHenry Public Library 

Bill Edminster, Assistant Director, McHenry Public Library 
Lesley Jakacki, Youth Services Manager, McHenry Public Library (left 
8:30 p.m.) 
Patti Torgersen, Business Manager, McHenry Public Library (left 8:10 
p.m.) 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
IV. Corrections or Additions to the Agenda 

None 
 

V. Public Comment and Recognition of Visitors 
Business Manager Patti Torgersen spoke to the Board about the ongoing library audit. 

 
VI. Consent Agenda for this meeting 

Secretary's Report – Monica Leccese, Secretary  
Minutes of the September 18, 2018 Public Hearing and the September 18, 2018 Regular 
Board Meeting  
Treasurer’s Report – Delphine Grala, Treasurer 
Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through September 30, 2018 
Invoice Reports for September/October 2018 
Additional Invoices  
Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports 



 

3 
 

The Board reviewed the regular board minutes, financial statements, and monthly 
invoices. Treasurer Grala pointed out that we have received 47% of our property 
taxes for the year. Scholtz added that there were 15 scheduled payments of 
property taxes this fiscal year and that the next payment would be in the new 
calendar year.  
Scholtz told the Board that the library’s bank regularly charges us late fees 
because their deadline for payments conflicted with our date for paying bills. 
Schubert used his banking experience to put the late fees in perspective relative to 
the interest we receive and said that the fees were not a reason to change banks. 
Grala moved and Stone seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the hearing on 
September 18, 2018, the regular meeting for September 18, 2018, the monthly financial 
statements for the fiscal year through September 30, 2018, the Invoice Reports for 
September/October 2018, and payment of the invoices.   
Ayes: Carey, Fogleman, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone  
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
Motion Passed 
 

VII. Communications 
None 
 

VIII. Librarian's Report 
The Board reviewed the Librarian’s Report 
 The Friends of the McHenry Library will hold a warehouse book sale on October 20-

21. Edminster will work with the Friends this weekend. Scholtz will work at the 
Friends’ clearance book sale on October 28. 

 Shane Claucherty, the new Building Manager, began work on October 15. 
 Araceli Moreno, the new Adult Services bilingual librarian began work on October 

15. 
 Micah Brown, IT Specialist Lead, will be leaving the library for new employment on 

October 19. Scholtz reported that he was considering either hiring an IT Manager or 
another IT Specialist. In the interim, he is considering hiring an IT consultant from 
CCB to work on a project removing unused virtual machines from our network. 

 Scholtz informed the Board that Imagetec, the vendor we purchased Toshiba 
printer/copiers from, was replacing them with Konica Minolta devices on Thursday 
since the Toshiba printer/copiers do not work with coin-op devices as required. 

 Scholtz made a comment about how well Torgersen was prepared for her first audit 
here. 

 Admin and managers are updating job descriptions that will then be reviewed by HR 
Source, formerly Illinois Management Association. 

 Scholtz and Yazel are comparing our pay scale for various positions against those at 
other comparable libraries in order to update what we pay. 

 Scholtz spoke about liability and officers/directors insurance renewals. Although he 
prefers to give business to local agents, workers compensation insurance from TriNet 
costs us half as much as we paid before. 



 

4 
 

 Scholtz reported that he has formed a committee to investigate VOIP phone systems. 
He informed the Board that there are concerns that since the system is Internet based, 
the phones would not work when the Internet goes down. In preparation for going to 
VOIP, we have found a way to increase our Internet speed inexpensively through 
Comcast. We have four or five preliminary price quotes for VOIP phone systems. 

 Scholtz informed the Board that there is a new Illinois state law that if a non-exempt 
employee is required to work from home, their employer is responsible for some part 
of Internet and electricity costs. The law did not define guidelines for reimbursement. 

 One requirement for the next Per Capita Grant is that the Board and staff spend 
instruction time on the topic of serving patrons with special needs. Scholtz attended a 
two-hour program on the topic and the State Library has confirmed that presenting 
the information to the Board would satisfy the Per Capita requirement. 

 Library managers reconsidered carrying Narcan or naloxone HCl for staff to 
administer if they see what could be a drug overdose and they decided it was a good 
idea after all. Scholtz will investigate access, cost, and training again. 

 Scholtz reported that some staff members were trained on AED/CPR recently and 
more will be trained in the new year. 

 Scholtz reported that the sign-up campaign for Harrison School was very successful. 
The campaign was a pilot for use at other elementary schools. A concern is that some 
other schools serve students who do not live in our district. 

 
IX. Old Business 

1. Schubert reported on the City of McHenry council meeting that decided to reduce 
impact fees for D.R. Horton’s Oaks of Irish Prairie subdivision. The city’s decision 
was to make a 50% reduction, a decision that affected all the taxing bodies involved. 
The city wants to speed up the sales to reduce the amount of time before the houses 
are generating property tax income. 

 

X. New Business 
1. Revised Tuition Reimbursement Policy—including forms/agreements 

Scholtz explained that the policy was revised to prevent the recurrence of a recent 
situation when reimbursement was not arranged before a staff member left. The 
policy was vetted by a lawyer and by HR Source. 
Leccese moved and Grala seconded a motion to approve the revised Tuition 
Reimbursement Policy, including forms and agreements. 
Ayes: Carey, Fogleman, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
Motion Passed 
 

2. Approval of FY2018/19 Levy and Appropriations Act (Ordinance 2018/19-2) 
Scholtz pointed out to the Board that the budget portion of the act had not changed. 
Leccese moved and Schubert seconded a motion to certify the FY2018/19 Levy and 
Appropriations Act (Ordinance 2018/19-2). 
Ayes: Carey, Fogleman, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone 



 

5 
 

Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
Motion Passed 
 

3. Approval of Prevailing Wage Ordinance (Ordinance 2018/19-3). 
The Board discussed the Prevailing Wage Ordinance. 
Carey moved and Stone seconded a motion to approve the Prevailing Wage 
Ordinance (Ordinance 2018/19-3). 
Ayes: Carey, Fogleman, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
Motion Passed 
 

4. Approval of the Calendar of Regular Meetings (Ordinance 2018/19-4) 
The wrong date was on the Ordinance so the motion was to approve it as corrected. 
Scholtz informed the Board that the deadline for staff to submit statistics and items 
for the Librarians Report couldn’t be moved earlier so Librarians reports in the Board 
packet will not be for the most recent completed month but for the month before. 
Grala moved and Carey seconded a motion to approve the Calendar of Regular 
Meetings (Ordinance 2018/19-4) as corrected.  
Ayes: Carey, Fogleman, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
Motion Passed 
 

5. Approval of  the Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy revision 
Scholtz said that the policy now reflects the library’s chain of command. The policy 
applies to staff. The Behavior Policy applies to patrons. 
Stone moved and Grala seconded a motion to approve the Non-Discrimination and 
Anti-Harassment Policy as revised.  
Ayes: Carey, Fogleman, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
Motion Passed 
 

6. DISC profiles/teamwork and possible Strategic Planning Meeting 
Scholtz will test Fogleman to determine her DISC personality profile. Scholtz said he 
wants to schedule a one-day strategic planning session next summer. The plan will 
have a shorter duration. 

 
XI. Any and All Other Business That May Properly Come Before the Board 

1. None 
 



 

6 
 

XII. Adjournment 
Reilly moved and Grala seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:46 p.m.   
Ayes: Carey, Fogleman, Grala, Leccese, Reilly, Schubert, Stone 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
Motion Passed 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

       
Monica Leccese, Secretary 

 






























































